
MINUTES 
Executive Committee 
Blacksburg, Virginia 

October 26, 2001 
 

Approved November___, 2001 
 
Members Present  by Roll Call 
 
Delegate Bennett 
Mr. Arthur 
Mr. Courter 
Mr. Currin 
Mr. Forbes 
Mr. Walker 
Senator Wampler 
Mr. Watkins 
 
Delegate Bennett opened the meeting and asked if the committee members had a chance 
to read the minutes of March 9, 2001, and to vote to approve the minutes.   
 
Motion to approve the minutes of March 9, 2001 
Motion seconded 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion adopted 
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 2 

Virginia International Raceway 
 

Delegate Bennett requested Joe Morgan, Halifax Administration to begin his 
presentation on behalf of the Virginia International Raceway (VIR). 
 
Mr. Morgan thanked the committee for its fairness.  He expressed the extensive work 
accomplished on this project by Brett Vassey, Business Service Manager, Existing 
Business Services Division of the Virginia Department of Business Assistance. 
 
Delegate Bennett asked Mr. Morgan how much time was needed to present materials. 
  
Mr. Morgan replied about ten minutes. 
 
Delegate Bennett said ok. 
  
Mr. Morgan proceeded by referencing to the two documents that were enclosed in the 
members’ packets.  These documents were (1) Virginia International Raceway Water and 
Sewer Utilities (2) Economic Impact Data for the VIR Executive Summary/Overview.  
Mr. Morgan went on to explain that VIR had a lot of potential and could possibly provide 
300 full-time jobs, about $60 million in on-site investment, and increase the current tax 
benefit of over $2 million up to about $18 million.  Also, he stated that Virginia Tech had 
measured the economic benefit of VIR at about $190 million.  Mr. Morgan stated that 
there were a couple of constraints to the project, which consisted of (1) Wastewater 
treatment (they believe the last alternative will cost over $2 million); and (2) Water 
supply (about ¾ of a million dollars was needed).  VIR wanted the assistance of local 
governing counties, $2.9 million from the Special Projects Fund, which will help in 
implementing a solution to the wastewater treatment and water supply problems.  In 
addition, VIR had requested the commission to match a total of $1.458 million of the 
Special Projects money, leaving the balance of the money to be pledged by local 
government.   
 
Delegate Bennett asked Mr. Morgan if VIR’s specific request of the commission was for 
$1.458 million. 
 
Mr. Morgan responded yes.  Preliminary engineering had been completed on the two 
options.  Mr. Morgan stated that he believed the preferred option, which was the further 
long-term option should tie into the existing City of Danville facilities requiring them to 
go into Pittsylvania County and work with them, as well as the City of Danville on 
preliminary scheduling.  Also, he added that there was no commitment on partnership of 
those two communities and it was too early to tell.  Mr. Morgan continued to state that 
there was a fallback alternative that was more practical and installed an onsite Water 
Sewage System.  
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 3 

Delegate Bennett asked if the second page of document titled Special Projects Fund 
Application was the one that showed the two alternatives. 
 
Mr. Morgan answered yes. 
 
Delegate Bennett addressed the committee’s attention to the second page of the 
application so that the members would be clear of discussion.  Delegate Bennett 
continued to say that the second page had what was called the most practical alternative 
and then the preferred alternative.  Delegate Bennett asked Mr. Morgan if the money 
requested by VIR was $1.458 million, would Halifax be the lead or sole locality-leading 
agency, or whether Pittsylvania County and City of Danville would come onboard.   
 
Mr. Morgan stated that Delegate Bennett was correct. 
 
Delegate Bennett further inquired if VIR was at the stage of knowing where they 
intended to obtain the money needed. 
 
Mr. Morgan responded no.  The Halifax County Board of Supervisors had agreed to 
fund the onsite portion of the project or match through the funding of Virginia Resources 
Authorities (VRA).  In addition, Mr. Morgan said the most practical alternative was 
immediately doable and VIR was prepared to start design.  However, the preferred 
alternative would still require the three governments to determine how they could best 
work together.  
 
John Forbes asked if all the money was to be used for water and wastewater processing. 
 
Mr. Morgan stated that the money would be used for distribution and processing.  The 
water system, well system ______ tank and distribution system __________ waste water 
system would have a collection, as well as _________ and the proposal is for all of the 
publicly owned ___________ a frozen in place of the Halifax circle. 
 
John Forbes asked if the VRA was unable or unwilling to finance the entire project. 
 
Mr. Morgan acknowledged that he didn’t know if VRA had been approached about the 
entire project.  He didn’t think it was feasible for VRA to fund the entire project in terms 
of payback because of the unique location and regional setting of the project.  Mostly, 
this project would benefit the Commonwealth through income taxes.  A study conducted 
by VPI estimated the current $ 2.4 million was being spun off through Virginia sales and 
lodging taxes, 45% of benefit would come out to the City of Danville and Pittsylvania 
County areas, and 20% to Halifax areas.  The project would allow the majority of the 
Commonwealth’s benefit would come back into the steady income taxes; it’s not a direct 
payback.  In addition he said VIR believes that they will have a positive impact 
regionally if they obtained the assistance of local government, the commission and 
surrounding counties.  In addition, the VRA would look for terms of utility payments to 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 4 

payoff the full $3 million, which wouldn’t the project would generate those kinds of 
revenues in the offset.           
 
Delegate Bennett asked Mr. Morgan to continue. 
 
Brett Vassey gave an overview of facility.  Afterwards, Mr. Vassey asked the members 
if there were any questions. 
  
Delegate Bennett asked the members of the commission if there were any questions. 
 
Mr. Vassey continued the VIR presentation by introducing Connie Nyholm, 
Owner/Developer of the Virginia International raceway.  Ms. Nyholm provided the 
commission with in-depth information of facility and tourist statistics conducted by 
Virginia Tech. 
 
Special Projects meeting adjourned. 
 
Members Present  by Roll Call 
Mr. Anderson, Mr. Arthur, Delegate Bennett, Mr. Boyd, Mr. Bryant, Delegate Byron, 
Delegate Clement, Commissioner Courter, Delegate Dudley, Mr. Fields, Secretary 
Forbes, Mr. Grinstead, Senator Hawkins, Mr. Hopkins, Mr. Hurley, Delegate Johnson, 
Delegate Kilgore, Mr. Lawson, Deputy Secretary Lief, Mr. Montgomery, Mr. Osborne, 
Senator Puckett, Senator Ruff, Mr. Stallard, Mr. Taylor, Ms. Thomas, Mr. Walker, 
Senator Wampler, Mr. Watkins, Mr. West, Mr. Williams 
 
Senator Hawkins welcomed the members to the meeting. 
 
Mr. Currin conducted roll call. 
 
Dr. Charles W. Steger, President of the Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State 
University gave remarks. 
 
Dr. Bruno Sobral, Director of the Virginia Bioinformatics Institute gave remarks. 
 
Mr. Clark Lewis, Esquire of Troutman Sanders Mays Valentine updated the 
commission. 
 
Mr. Clark Lewis stated that approximately $1,530,379 had not been claimed and 
roughly 96% of the fund had been paid-off.  Also, he said he only knew of one 
outstanding claim.  Mr. Lewis went on to say that in July there was 250 to 300 state 
claims.  They were successful by willing them down to one claim.  In addition, Mr. Lewis 
stated that there were approximately 150 claims, which meant they received them beyond 
the July 2, 2001 deadline.  As a result, they informed those individuals that the 
commission didn’t extended the deadline.  He said the good news was that the numbers 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 5 

were dramatically less than the 500 late claims submitted last year.   Mr. Lewis thought 
the commission’s decision to strictly enforce the deadline was widely relayed to the 
people, and those individuals understood that they needed to get their forms in on time. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked the commission if there were any questions. 
 
Mr. Clark added that they would be distributing the 1099 Earning Statements in early 
December.   
 
Senator Hawkins thanked Mr. Clark. 
 
Mr. Clark responded yes sir. 
 
Senator Hawkins commented on the outstanding job done and gave credit for their 
outstanding performance. 
 
Senator Hawkins continued to the next item on the agenda, which was the e-58 Project 
Fund presented by the Chairman of the project, Mr. Ben Davenport. 
 
Mr. Davenport explained the e-58 Taskforce Project to the committee.  (See attached 
presentation)   
 
Mr. Davenport asked Mr. Chris McCollum to further explain the project’s vision, 
business plans and proposals. 
 
Chris McCollum stated that the slides were to illustrate to them exactly what happens.  
Mr. McCollum also stressed the importance of the commercial market place being private 
sector driven.  He stated if it weren’t private sector driven the project wouldn’t be 
successful, or sustainable, and wouldn’t generate proposals.  He made reference to other 
funding sources consisting of federal, state, local and private.  Also, Mr. McCollum 
stated that the USDA had a broadband fund that was available and was expecting this 
year to have many more millions of dollars in that particular fund that would available to 
fund these kinds of projects.  He further explained that proposals would be forwarded to 
the Tobacco Commission for review, allowing members to ensure that applicants met 
funding criteria and if they did the commission could vote to fund the project.  The e-58 
Project would have to be highly leveraged money to make successful, including build, 
develop and management these types of networks, services and applications.  He stated 
that they were looking to make sure everyone understood that the project was ultimately 
driven by the private sector and couldn’t be managed by the public sector because it 
simply didn’t make sense.  Mr. McCollum stated that the private sector endings would 
bring the innovative and creative ideas to the Tobacco Commission, allowing them to 
obtain help in making a business case that would hold in the areas they currently felt they 
couldn’t make their business case hold. (See attached presentation that includes both Ben 
Davenport and Chris McCollum’s speaking points)    



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 6 

 
Senator Hawkins thanked Mr. McCollum for presenting further explaining the e-58 
Project Fund. 
 
Mr. Taylor asked why the time was of the essence for the program to be successful and 
what was the time frame that the project was looking to obtain funding? 
 
Mr. McCollum said if the committee agreed to adopt the basic Vision Statement then the 
project could move forward by publishing it right away and establish the first set of 
proposals be submitted by January 1, 2002.  After that point, the review panel would 
meet to discuss proposals that were submitted. 
  
Senator Hawkins inquired if Mr. McCollum was requesting for the commission to 
adopt the Mission Statement in order to provide some foundation to work from.   
 
Mr. McCollum replied yes. 
 
Senator Hawkins stated that it was to his understanding that committee members didn’t 
have a copy of the statement because changes were made.  Also, the document had been 
sent by FedEx and hadn’t arrived.  Finally, Senator Forbes stated that the commission 
couldn’t vote to approve the statement without having the opportunity to review the 
statement. 
  
THERE ARE A FEW CONVERSATIONS THAT YOU MAY WANT TO 
INCORPORATE INTO THE MINUTES.  I WASN’T ABLE TO DISTINGUISH 
EXACTLY WHAT THE MEMBERS WERE TRYING TO SAY. 
 
Mr. McCollum stated there were problems with the timing of the RFP to include the cost 
of hiring these expert firms.  He further explained that they thought it could be done at a 
much more cost effective way subject to commission’s approval.  Furthermore, he 
believed that they would be able to get someone on an honorary type basis to assist 
during the first year.  
 
Senator Hawkins asked if there were any questions by the commission. 
 
Senator Bennett continued the discussion by explaining the basic principles of the 
project, and the project’s need to adopt the Mission Statement to use as a springboard.  
Also, he expressed his interest to adopt the statement. 
 
Attorney Generals office expressed the need to tweak the statement. 
 
Motion to adopt the Mission Statement 
Motion seconded 
All in favor by aye vote 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 7 

None opposed 
Motion accepted 
 
Ben Davenport thanked the leadership of VA Tech in helping to develop the program. 
 
Senator Hawkins stated that an idea is no better than how it is executed.  He expressed 
the idea of the e-58 Project being the thread that ties together all of the tobacco 
communities, allowing it to be the one piece that was different from anything the 
committee had discussed.  Senator Hawkins expressed the need to understand the full 
public and private partnership endeavor.  Afterwards, Senator Hawkins thanked Mr. 
Davenport for his contribution to the project. 
 
Mr. Tom Arthur stated that the commission had approved and gave lip service to the 
project.  He suggested adding muscle and real weight to the project by designating $5 
million to the e-58 Project, which would be set aside from the Special Project Fund with 
disbursements of the funds to be only approved by the full commission.  It would 
demonstrate the commission’s intent of support to the project. 
  
Hawkins made the motion. 
 
Senator Hawkins added that it was to his understanding that Special Projects Funds had 
over $8 million of an incumbent balance and if they agreed to set the money aside they 
would still have over $3 million at their disposal, plus possibly have the funds before the 
new moneys arrive. 
 
Motion to designate $5 million for the e-58 Project to be set aside from the Special 
Projects Fund with disbursement of those funds to be authorized and approved by the full 
commission. 
Motion seconded 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion accepted 
 
Attorney Generals office explained the things they would be looking to tweak, which 
was the use of public funds for private services.  They explained the Virginia 
Constitution strictly prohibited using such funds for private usage. 
 
Senator Hawkins replied to the Attorney Generals office that it was to his understanding 
that the members were looking for the public good with the money.  Also, Chairman 
Hawkins commented that the commitments needed to be made or some of it couldn’t be 
done.  He went on to thank the Attorney Generals office for its comments and added that 
they would be noted.  
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 8 

Delegate Bennett went on to speak regarding the possibilities of the project.  He added 
the public good that was presented, which was significant and constitutionally acceptable. 
 
Senator Hawkins expressed his interest in the commission supporting this project and 
work out the issues. 
 
Delegate Bennett continued to speak regarding Constitution and legislation. 
 
Senator Hawkins expressed the need to do whatever it took to pass. 
 
Delegate Clement added that Virginia code might need to be amended to accommodate 
the funding. 
 
Senator Hawkins stated as long as there was a will that benefits the public they could 
find a way to work it out. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if there were any questions, if not they would break for lunch 
and work through lunch. 
 
Meeting adjourned for lunch. 
 
Meeting conveyed. 
 
Senator Hawkins opened meeting. 
 
Secretary Forbes further discussed the point that technological infrastructure wasn’t 
enough to spark economic development.  He expressed the need for the workforce to be 
well trained in technology.  Secretary Forbes made reference to the last meeting where it 
was agreed upon to partner with the Literary Foundation with the intentions of providing 
financial assistance to the students in Southwest and Southside Virginia, who were 
looking for additional training in computer and technology certification programs.  He 
went on to outline the community colleges involvement in various programs, such as 
Microsoft and CISCO Systems Certification.  He briefly spoke of present tax laws.  He 
added that November they would start issuing the finance to students.      
 
Senator Hawkins gave motion to amend the list. 
 
Mr. Forbes stated they would approve programs that they were in and they had to be a 
resident in the community served. 
 
Delegate Clement asked what assurance would the commission get in order to ensure 
that people are going to help out by not leaving until they get certified.  He stated that this 
was a huge amount of money.  Delegate Clement asked where would a student go after 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 9 

he/she received the scholarship money.  He further expressed his concern with the usage 
of the tobacco money. 
 
Senator Hawkins responded by saying that it was true that there’s no guarantee that 
these people would stay at home unless the committee did the work they we are charged 
by putting in place some type of infrastructure to attract the investments for jobs.  He 
explained the need to put in place an educational level for jobs in the workforce, as well 
as offer innovative opportunities to the community.     
 
Senator Hawkins said they had added the language of criteria. 
 
Delegate Byron asked if four-year colleges qualified in the program. 
 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 
 
Senator Hawkins asked Secretary Forbes if there was anyway they could put in place 
some criteria for abuse. 
 
Forbes said he thought the process determined need.  He stated that the process worked 
as: (1) candidate inquires to community college for financial assistance, (2) financial 
assistance would be a loan application, if they get turned down for that then they would 
be eligible for scholarship money and ultimately grant money.  It gets close to what you 
are trying to accomplish. 
 
Forbes said these programs make Microsoft certified professionals and solution 
developers focused on their career jobs. 
 
Senator Hawkins stated he wasn’t sure how to limit unless it was an agreement of how 
long to stay in the program. 
 
Senator Ruff made reference to a scholarship program initiated in the 1960’s. 
 
Mr. Forbes went on to speak regarding the program, conditions and possibilities.  He 
expressed the need to move forward and not undue work done.  
 
Senator Hawkins added comment regarding opportunities. 
 
Mr. Forbes suggested adding vocational schools to the list. 
 
Delegate Clement asked if the commission had seen what they were willing to move 
forward on, including the scope of the program and criteria for making these grants.  
Also, he asked if they were need-based? 
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 10 

Mr. Forbes answered yes to the extent that you first apply for a loan; if you can’t qualify 
then you get a scholarship and possibly a grant afterwards. 
 
Delegate Clement asked what distinguishment was made between the grant vs. a loan. 
 
Mr. Forbes replied that it wasn’t a condition that the commission agreed to or the way it 
was structured. 
 
Delegate Clement asked Mr. Forbes if he intended on going forward with this $5 million 
as outlined.  Also, he asked why it couldn’t be changed. 
 
Mr. Forbes said he represents the commission and the other board and didn’t want to say 
what they could or couldn’t do.  However, he did know they had lawyers draft a program 
and have matched funds.  He noted that they were ready to go in terms of providing 
financial assistance.  Mr. Forbes continued by saying their investment would be $5 
million, but the total financial assistance would be $15 million.  Mr. Forbes stated if need 
be he could raise to the foundation what they could do or change regarding residential 
conditions. 
 
Delegate Clement stressed the importance of higher education, but $5 million was an 
awful amount of money not to mention the $6 million previously given.  He stressed 
accountability in what the region is getting back in its return of the investment.  He 
further argued that he knew the people would benefit from this program, but what was the 
Tobacco Commission going to get as a result.    
 
Senator Hawkins continued the discussion regarding scholarship.  He suggested having 
a need base criteria and discuss at the appropriate time. 
  
Mr. Forbes suggested the commission to move forward in outline the participating 
schools to ensure the program would not be delayed. 
 
Mr. Watkins spoke briefly regarding his understanding of the program. 
 
Mr. Forbes stated in the last meeting the members agreed to approve the schools on list, 
but the students had to be residents of this region.  In addition, he asked if they could add 
schools to the list on an as needed basis preventing the delay of financial assistance. 
 
Senator Ruff asked how technical schools qualified and what would not qualify. 
 
Mr. Forbes said they surveyed community colleges. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if the scholarships were set up for January enrollments or not. 
 
Mr. Forbes stated the scholarships were set for November’s enrollment. 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 11 

 
Senator Hawkins asked if the money had been allotted. 
 
Mr. Forbes said no and not until the commission had voted to approve the selected 
schools on the list.  
 
Senator Hawkins spoke to members and encouraged the depths of what they were trying 
to do.  (made reference to catch 22) 
 
Delegate Kilgore addressed Senator Hawkins and expressed his belief that the 
committee members were getting far fetched on this program.  He further said by 
agreeing to adopt the list didn’t mean the committee agreed to spend the entire $15 
million, but it simply meant approving the list, which could be supplemented at a later 
date.  He then suggested in allowing the program to move forward. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked to create subcommittee appointing Senator Ruff as chair with 
Secretary Forbes and Mr. Walker to serve. 
  
Motion to approve based on information before us 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion adopted 
 
Senator Hawkins stated they had added the base line and schools could be added. 
  
Mr. Lawson spoke regarding the money used by the community colleges.  He introduced 
Dean Cathleen Smith. 
 
Dean Cathleen Smith provided an eight-minute video presentation of the Patrick Henry 
Community College (PHCC) Educational Program.  She explained that PHCC designed 
this video for marketing purposes, as well as a visual for the commission to observe the 
program and get a clearer view of its return on the educational investment.  The video 
allowed students to express their views of the schools and programs.  Technical training 
in Oracle database management and CISCO network training was mentioned.  The video 
stressed the importance of the students being highly trained and obtain hands on 
experience in the technical field.  Dean Smith continued by saying the college currently 
offered as much as 84 different distance-learning courses.  A student could enroll in the 
general studies degree, which was transferable and could be completed totally online.  
PHCC has been dedicated to servicing the area’s current industry, allowing them to offer 
a Furniture Manufacturing Program, which focused on training workers in higher 
technology in that field.   In addition, PHCC was able to provide a program focused on 
motor sports technology (technical and management), which has been important to that 
region.   
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 12 

Senator Hawkins commented by saying the presentation was good. 
  
Dean Smith said thank you.  The presentation was a little snap shot.  PHCC thought the 
video would allow the committee to put a face and see in reality where the money has 
gone.  She referred to one of the first meetings where Senator Hawkins talked about 
planting seed corn.  PHCC thought they would show that the corn had been planted, 
watered, fertilized, and is growing, and now they are beginning to pick the first ears 
showing a real impact of the program.  Furthermore, she stated that PHCC was adding 
another program in addition to furniture and motor sports, which was a 
telecommunications program that ties into the e-58 Project.  She shared the idea of 
allowing the other six colleges to provide give footage or produce their own footage with 
hopes of integrating the materials into one video. 
 
Senator Hawkins went back to the miscommunication of the Literary Foundation 
discussion.  He expressed the need to further clarify the motion made and then Delegate 
Bennett’s amendment to that motion. 
 
Delegate Kilgore proposed his original motion to approve the schools for the 
Technology Certification Program. 
 
Delegate Bennett spoke next regarding criteria. 
 
Senator Hawkins said the other part was a subcommittee out of the educational part of 
the commission chaired by Senator Ruff and manned by commission members Mr. 
Walker and Mr. Forbes to go over the criteria of the schools so they members would not 
have to go through the process. 
 
Motion  
Seconded 
All in favor by Aye 
One opposed (Mr. Montgomery) 
One extension (Mr. Forbes) 
Motion passed 
 
Senator Hawkins continued to the Committee of Reports and asked Delegate Bennett if 
he wanted to make a presentation on the Special Projects. 
 
Delegate Bennett responded yes.  He spoke of VIR’s request for money and the 
subcommittee approving the request subject only to encouraging Pittsylvania and 
Danville to participate in the project along with Halifax.  He stated he had representatives 
present from VIR. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked for information pertaining to the economic impact. 
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 13 

Connie Nyholm of VIR spoke of the facility and vision.  In addition, she referred to 
surveys completed by Virginia Tech consisting of outside interest from neighboring 
states and several foreign countries.  
  
Senator Hawkins interrupted Ms. Nyholm suggesting that she provide the information 
relating to the economic impact. 
 
Ms. Nyholm continued by explaining the economic impact and the Commonwealth 
receiving revenues from income taxes, as well as retail. 
 
Delegate Bennett stated 80% of the revenue was outside the state and brought in new 
capitol.   
 
Senator Hawkins asked if the intent of the discussion was to tie the line into the 
municipal system of Danville and open up Corridor 58.  
 
Delegate Bennett responded yes.  He stated that the commission should know that 
Halifax had been pushing the project.  Also, VIR had been in contact with Danville and 
Pittsylvania County.  But, the speed had moved slowly and the two haven’t moved fast 
enough.  The subcommittee felt the two absolutely should.  He explained the preferred 
alternative provided the water and sewer to this project by connecting up this project, 
which is approximately 7 miles away from Danville to Danville’s Wastewater Treatment.  
They haven’t come onboard yet.  Trying to get those parties together.  There are some 
assurances they want to do it.  If they don’t participate the alternative is to do so onsite by 
authority of Halifax County, which is the political remedy.  They prefer to use the 
preferred engineered economic development.  However, they need to know.  He 
recommended to the commission to help $1.4568 and encourage Pittsylvania County and 
Danville to participate in project. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if it would be a unanimous vote. 
 
Delegate Bennett said yes sir. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if there were any questions. 
 
Mr. Arthur asked VIR if this was a sanctioned facility. 
 
Mr. Nyholm stated it was multiple sanctioning as she further explained. 
 
Mr. Lief addressed Chairman Hawkins referring to a previous phone conversation in 
which Mr. Lief called Senator Hawkins and expressed his interest in VIR and its grand 
opening.  Mr. Siegal and Connie had invested millions of dollars and are trying to expand 
the track and facility.   
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 14 

One of the farmers asked where they were in regards to the Virginia Department of 
Transportation (VDOT) and improving your roads and getting people in and out. 
 
Ms. Nyholm stated that Halifax had placed them on a six-year plan.  The survey looks to 
be complete.  VDOT will improve route. 
   
One of the farmers asked what percentage of the Virginia people vs. North Carolina 
people work for VIR. 
 
Ms. Nyholm stated 5% of North Carolinians. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked Ms. Nyholm to explain access roads. 
 
Ms. Nyholm explained. 
 
Mr. Lawson asked at the rate of growth with this project what were the accommodations 
and would they grow with need. 
 
Ms. Nyholm replied yes and the Virginia Tech study estimated just under 1,800 rooms in 
a 25-30 mile radius.  Bought in 75,000 people this year. 
 
Senator Hawkins addressed question to Delegate Bennett.  He asked if the intent of the 
subcommittee would be to encourage county and city officials, as well as assisting in the 
development of the sewer line along 58 and to ensure this project’s development is 
funded. 
 
Delegate Bennett said yes sir and further explained subcommittee.  He also, referred to 
Charlotte’s mall that was a growth. 
 
Senator Hawkins further explained his concerns. 
 
Delegate Bennett asked that the committee vote to pass motion for VIR to receive 
$1.458 million for funding of project. 
 
Seconded 
All in favor by Aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion adopted 
  
Senator Hawkins thanked Delegate Bennett and moved forward to next topic being 
Russell County.   
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 15 

Senator Puckett briefly spoke requesting the members to keep Russell County on the 
subcommittee agenda.  They were completing everything in order to bringing new 
industries.  
 
Senator Hawkins thanked Senator Puckett for the update of Russell County.  
Afterwards, he moved forward to the Economic Subcommittee of Southside chaired by 
Senator Clement. 
 
Senator Clement thanked Senator Hawkins.  He spoke of the Southside subcommittee 
meeting a few weeks ago, which had several items on the agenda and one being the 
Institute for Advanced Learning and Research that VA Tech President spoke of this 
morning and the presentation given.  The committee adopted a resolution in which he has 
a more accurate document that clarifies Danville and Pittsylvania County; it is 
extraordinary that they have money to force these two jurisdictions to work together.  If 
the authority proceeds in issuing $15 million of bunds, Danville, Pittsylvania and the 
Joint IDA Authority proposed to paid off from using Pittsylvania and Danville allocations 
each year $1 million to the extent that the commission receives tobacco money and to the 
extent that the commission makes the allocation to the various tobacco dependent 
communities that those two jurisdictions would then use a million each until those bonds 
were paid off, plus the interest and associated costs.  Ben Davenport has been a leader in 
this, just as he has taken a leadership role in the e-58 Project.  But we also heard from 
Clark James, Virginia Tech at that meeting and I noticed today Tim Franklin, who was 
heading up this institute that provides graduate level courses and partnership between 
Averett Community College and Virginia Tech.  The resolution being distributed is need 
so we can take resolution to lending institution to evaluate and see if they want to take 
risk.  The resolution they hope the bank will issue letter of credit.  May not, because the 
bank may realize that the commission here today can’t bind a future commission as to 
what the allocation might be, nor can we assure lending institution that the master 
settlement agreement funds, nor can we assure the General Assembly of Virginia will 
continue to appropriate money to the commission.  Those If’s are built into this 
resolution.  It’s simply an expression of our intent that to the extent the commission 
receives appropriation under our tobacco legislation and to the intent that the commission 
has in place, which we do now an allocation formula for each of the tobacco 
communities.  To those extents the jurisdictions of Pittsylvania County and Danville want 
to say lender we will commit to those extents the repayment of those bonds $1 million a 
piece over the next 10-12 years of those bonds.  He emphasized needing the expression of 
intent from the commission. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if there was a motion. 
 
Delegate Clement asked to pass the resolution. 
 
Delegate Johnson asked question regarding the affect if we had $2 million and it all 
went to Southside and Southwest Virginia. 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 16 

 
Senator Hawkins responded with it has nothing to do with that at all.  This is the basic 
formula and is strictly Danville and Pittsylvania County’s piece of the pie. 
 
Delegate Clement deferred to Ben Davenport because he was there initially. 
 
Mr. Davenport stated that NASA has designated the Danville Regional Airport as a 
______ airport because NASA is working on next generation of aviation.  The next 
generation of aircraft will be driven by GPS system and reduce cost of aviation.  Virginia 
Tech is a big part of this and Danville’s airport is on NASA web site.  He further 
explained NASA’s interest with Danville’s airport and the potential of a similar 
agreement of Ohio Tech with the institute. 
 
Senator Hawkins thanked Mr. Davenport and went on to say he wanted to discuss today 
if you are trying to put in place a new way of thinking about new identify.  This is how 
you start and this is the type of thinking that will take us into this century with a new 
workforce.  If this institute is built and it will be not only will it benefit Danville and 
Pittsylvania County, but every county in our region because of what it brings to the table.  
This type of institute will not duplicate anything that the Commonwealth is offering 
today.  This is the type of thing that changes an economy, changes the direction of people 
with hopes of bringing a whole new direction of discussion.  Also, by location of this we 
can start pulling those investment dollars in research triangle back into Virginia, whether 
wasting those moneys in North Carolina.  He complimented everyone for idea. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if there were any other discussions. 
 
Mr. Watkins asked that the committee look at the resolve paragraph of the resolution. 
 
Mr. Shepherd stated that Mr. Watkins had beaten him to the punch.  That was the only 
questions, not problem that he had with the resolution.  He stated that no underling legal 
problems had been presented to the project itself.  Particularly, the banking lending 
members on this commission, Delegate Clement has put better than I can put what the 
caviots and limits are on this commission.  Continued receipt of payments, continued 
appropriations from the General Assembly.  This commission can’t bind a commission 
from two years from now.  I ask that you look at this document going to a lending 
institution and whether it really does lay out groundwork good enough.  I would focus is 
second where as paragraph.  Today, the commission has stead fastly grained from 
committing the application of allocation formula beyond a fixed date.  Basically, we are 
going year-to-year with that.  He wants help from staff as to what the current cuff off date 
was.   
 
Senator Hawkins said if you look at the intent of what they were trying to do at this 
juncture is to try to put in place those mechanisms that have long-term benefits and to do 
that takes a great deal more investment than what we are doing on a normal basis.  If we 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 17 

aren’t careful, we could find ourselves overusing small amounts of money and not 
accomplishing anything.  By this type of obligation, it doesn’t necessarily bind anyone to 
any long-term commitment is true, but it certainly sends to the General Assembly that 
this commission is sincere in putting in place the type of infrastructure that makes a 
difference in one’s economy.  And by showing that type of commitment with these 
moneys the General Assembly may look more faithfully upon us keeping those moneys 
in flow as the future comes about, whether than opening up discussions about best places 
to use these moneys if we can show the type of commitment being made by this 
committee the General Assembly may allow certain funds to flow freely than they would 
otherwise.            
    
Mr. Shepherd made reference to moral obligation and true facts being set out. 
 
Senator Hawkins stated that they were above reproach when it came to moral 
obligations. 
 
Senator Clements said he appreciated what Steve Shepherd was saying.  He stated that 
there were at least two banks that had been briefed thoroughly.  One bank turned them 
down.  You better believe anything to do with $15 million; those banks’ lawyers will 
understand exactly how our funds are on a year-to-year basis.  They understand now 
because we have nothing to gain without being absolutely open with them because they 
won’t go forward until they have a perfect understanding of it.  It is his understanding 
that the people that have been negotiating with those banks have explained all of these 
tricks.  Something could happen to the MSA money, the General Assembly 
appropriation, something could cause the commission to make a different allocation.  
They understand that and I hope if Steve has any suggestions to clarify more than it needs 
to be.  One bank thoroughly understands all of these contingencies has said yes we will 
make that commitment and issue that line of credit that is so important for issuance of 
those bonds.  Now, Mr. Chairman raised an important point, the more things we do as a 
commission to send the messages to the General Assembly that we have morally 
obligated these moneys, the more guilt about sweeping money from underneath us the 
better off our region will be because everything will be up for grabs. 
 
Senator Hawkins said before they voted on this he believed that everyone understands 
that banks discussion of the long-term advantages of this type of investment.  This is 
second only to e-58 will probably be the most important piece we could put in place to 
show what we have done to make a difference.   
 
Motion which is in fact a letter of intent based on certain obligations that are moral 
obligations the sums of moneys allocated to Pittsylvania County and Danville based on 
the formula in placed not jeopardizing anyone else’s formulas currently in the structure. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if there was any other discussion. 
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 18 

Mr. Tucker asked if they could add Mr. Shepherd’s suggestion into the motion. 
  
Mr. Shepherd said he believed that it was implied.  
 
Mr. Tucker said it may be implied, but for legal ramifications it needed to be included. 
 
Mr. Shepherd talks regarding where as paragraph. 
 
Senator Ruff suggested saying on an annual basis. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked Ruff to back up for a moment.  He then stated that it took 2/3 of 
the committee to change the formula.  It is an ongoing document.  He didn’t believe that 
it had a drop-dead date of next year.  The formula is in the rules and bi-laws we are 
governed by.  Senator Hawkins asked Mr. Shepherd what was his suggestion to correct 
the language.   
 
Mr. Shepherd added that he wasn’t sure if there wasn’t a deadline.   
 
Senator Hawkins stated again that the 2/3 votes by the committee were tied into the bi-
laws. 
 
Mr. Shepherd suggested to the chairman of possibly simply statement whereas the 
commission where as on an annual basis or where as annually allocated funds back 
within the communities.  That’s something they have always done. 
 
Senator Hawkins said he believed that Mr. Shepherd language would work with the 
indulgence of the commission if they could allow the Attorney Generals office to work 
the language into the resolution. 
 
Mr. Shepherd halted to work in requested language. 
 
Delegate Clement stated he believed that they could satisfy counsel if they just say in the 
second where as on the second line tobacco committee __________receives put has 
received has adopted allocation ___________ whereby each tobacco dependent 
community has received a portion. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if that did any harm of the intent they are trying to do.  Also, it 
had been in discussion with banks and he wanted to make sure they weren’t messing up 
anything. 
 
Delegate Clement stated he personally thought it was totally unnecessary, but if it gave 
people more comfort than do it.  He thought what really counted was the resolve. 
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 19 

Delegate Bennett spoke of policy and current allocation in place of moneys (10-12 
years).  May generate needed revenues.  He suggested considering e-58. 
 
Senator Hawkins added that it was his understanding that the intent of this resolution 
was to set aside moneys that allocated two entities of this commission the City of 
Danville and Pittsylvania County based on historical allocations that have gone to those 
communities, those moneys and nothing more.  The last meeting in Danville that Senator 
Hawkins attended in order to satisfy some of the discussions was added and lined on the 
last paragraph is part of that allocation from the commission to underscore the 
importance of dealing with allocation formula.  It was put in by my good friend from 
Halifax and probably needs to be further explained.  It is his understanding that these 
moneys based on discussions with any lending institution is going on the good faith of 
the history of the allocations going to these communities.  If in fact it doesn’t happen then 
it doesn’t happen.  But the $2 million Pittsylvania County and City of Danville has been 
set aside by government and city counsel that it is there intent and if we wait to 
accumulate this type of moneys for these types of investments locally then it won’t 
happen and we will find ourselves setting hear at 70 years old as we watch our futures go 
down the stream.  We will have to do something at some point as a leap of faith in order 
to stabilize our communities.  He expressed the need to encourage every community to 
look at some sort of long-term commitment to be able to stabilize these funds because 
Delegate Clement was not just speaking in the abstract because there’s already 
discussions of people looking at us with a lean and humble look when it comes to extra 
money that may be available.  If we can show to the rest of Commonwealth the intent of 
commission is to do more than build a stand along structure, but indeed change dynamics 
of community by investing long-term in those communities our arguments before the 
General Assembly will certainly be underscored by our commitments.  He stated he 
wasn’t certain what else to do other than what the resolution says.  They could tweak it to 
death and totally rewrite creating enough confusion to the lending institution to where 
they wouldn’t touch it.  He strongly suggested accepting the commission’s 
recommendation submitted by subcommittee as presented and go own faith that it is what 
is says. 
 
Mr. Tucker stated he had no problem as previously stated in the beginning. 
 
Senator Hawkins said he hoped they weren’t infringing on anyone’s rights.  Also, 
everyone in the adjacent counties benefiting.           
 
Mr. Ferguson made reference to everything being documented in the minutes, which 
helps him.    
 
Delegate Bennett said to reinforce point Mr. Watkins made you have to realize that what 
we are appropriating is $1 million dollars, not a percentage of Danville and Pittsylvania 
allocations.  If in future years the money is coming into this commission and shrinks and 
dwindles and some committee will be affected.   



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 20 

 
Senator Hawkins respectfully disagreed with Delegate Bennett.  He stated they would 
have to constantly look at ways that they can improve region.   
 
Motion to adopt the resolution from the Southside Economic Committee based on the 
discussion and based on supporting evidence within the minutes as to the intent of this 
resolution. 
All in favor by Aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion adopted 
 
Senator Hawkins thanked the members and referred to e-58. 
 
Delegate Clement stated to the chairman that they may need to bring to the full 
commission the recommendation of the Southside Economic Development Committee 
that we are going to allow Henry County in the purpose for which they were granted 
money early this year.  It deals with them being able to make a commitment to an 
industrial prospect and they are short about $200,000 and have requested permission to 
reallocate these funds previously granted to Henry County for this new industrial 
prospect.  We recommend that we allow Henry County to make that change. 
 
Senator Hawkins stated it was his understanding that the recommendation based on 
moneys already been held in Henry County and just use the moneys in a more 
appropriate fashion.  
Seconded 
All in favor by Aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion adopted 
 
Senator Hawkins made reference of two individuals leaving the board due to retirements 
of the General Assembly, Delegate Bennett and Delegate Clements.  He then suggested 
having a resolution drawn up and presented to them and presented at the next meeting, 
especially since that will be their last meeting. 
 
Delegate Bennett and Delegate Clements thanked Senator Hawkins. 
 
 
Mr. Lief asked to move to extend deal-closing guidelines. 
Motion 
Seconded 
All in favor by Aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion passed 
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 21 

Delegate Kilgore moved to recess in closed session  
Motion 
Seconded 
All in favor by Aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion passed 
 
Meeting moved into closed executive session. 
 
Meeting moved to reconvene into an open meeting. 
 
Delegate Kilgore read Certification of closed meeting. (see attachment)  
 
Senator Hawkins began Executive Session. 
 
Mr. Shepherd stated he didn’t jump fast enough before going into session.  He said may 
the minutes also show that the Virginia Department of Economic Development 
Partnership has entered into a confidentiality agreement with Crop Tech Corporation 
pursuant to the education partnership statues. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked how many meetings had Mr. Boyd attended. 
 
Mr. Carthan noted that Mr. Boyd’s term of appointment on the commission had ended 
and was subject to be reappointed or not to be under the current cycle.  Also, he stated 
that he could recall two occasions in which Mr. Boyd had been present. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if bi-laws would allow removal of someone. 
 
Mr. Carthan replied that the Governor would probably have to remove the person who 
was appointed by the Governor’s office.  
 
Delegate Clements made reference of discussion conducted in his Economic 
Development Committee the importance, cost and prepare a brochure that is succinct and 
attractive that illustrates the good works of the commission.  He also stated that he 
believed this would be the most tempting target this winter, along with the Medicaid 
money in the General Assembly.  He asked Mr. Carthan stood. 
 
Mr. Carthan stated per the committee’s request he had already made several phone calls 
to several marketing companies.  He obtained general information regarding cost and 
obtained a census. 
 
Delegate Clements stated if there was a need to protect this money, which he believed 
there was that they go on record and ask Martha Moore of the Farm Bureau to put on the 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 22 

bureau’s a list of things to lobby and look for this winter.  He then said that the 
commission would appreciate if Martha could include these items to the list. 
 
Senator Hawkins stated that the body needed to establish the next meeting date.  He 
suggested meeting some time before the 2002 General Assembly Session in late 
December. 
 
Ms. Moore responded to Delegate Clement request by stating on September 28th the 
Farm Bureau held the Agricultural Governor’s Forum and they asked both Mark Early 
and Mark Warner if they would honor the commitment of the 50% dedicated towards the 
Tobacco Commission.  She further stated that both gubernatorial candidates publically 
stated that they were in support of the commitment.  Ms. Moore respectfully requested 
that the commission to adopt the position and pass the resolution.  The Rule Prosperity 
Commission had adopted a concept that would support this resolution.  They would like 
to have a long-term plan set in place in Virginia.  She noted both candidates have 
announced their support of creating this Secretariat position.  She hoped that it would be 
the pleasure of the commission to likewise support the concept of creating the Secretary 
of Agriculture and Forestry. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked members if there was a motion. 
 
Motion to support the concept of creating the Secretary of Agriculture  
Seconded  
All in favor by Aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion passed 
 
Senator Hawkins stated that the agenda had been completed and asked the members if 
there were any comments they wanted to add.  He also emphasized the need to think of 
new ideas with the hopes of doing new things in Pittsylvania County, as well as different 
areas in the western part of the state, different approaches of economic development so 
that they could start putting in place initiatives that would make a difference to the 
Commonwealth.     
     
Meeting adjourned. 
 



Special Project Committee Minutes  
October 26, 2001 
Page 23 

Submitted by Carthan F. Currin, III 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Executive Director of the Commission 


	Approved November___, 2001
	Members Present  by Roll Call
	Virginia International Raceway

	Members Present  by Roll Call
	THERE ARE A FEW CONVERSATIONS THAT YOU MAY WANT TO INCORPORATE INTO THE MINUTES.  I WASN’T ABLE TO DISTINGUISH EXACTLY WHAT THE MEMBERS WERE TRYING TO SAY.
	All in favor by aye vote
	None opposed



